
 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD                     
PUBLIC HEARING/REGULAR MEETING 

 
CITY OF DELRAY BEACH 

DELRAY BEACH, FLORIDA 

 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
LOCATION: CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: John Miller, Mark Krall, Clifford Durden, Craig Spodak, Cary 

Glickstein, and Connor Lynch 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:    Al Jacquet 
  
STAFF PRESENT: Mark McDonnell, Terrill Pyburn, and Denise Valek 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Miller at 6:00 p.m. Upon roll call it was 
determined that a quorum was present.  

 
 II.    MINUTES 
 

Motion made by Mr. Glickstein, seconded by Mr. Durden, and approved 5 to 0 (Mr. Jacquet 
absent, and Dr. Spodak arrived late) to approve the Minutes of the July 19, 2010, August 16, 
2010, January 24, 2011, and February 28, 2011 meetings as written. 
 

III. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC:     
 

Ms. Aisha Colon, 307 SE 12th Road, advised there are atrocities being committed to the 
Floranda Trailer Park. 
 
Ms. Pyburn advised the final plat approval item pertains to the property, and request that Ms. 
Colon make her comments during that portion of the Agenda. 

 
IV. LAND USE ITEMS  
 

A. Final Plat approval for Franklin at Delray Beach, located on the west side of South 
Federal Highway, between SW 10th Street and Linton Boulevard and immediately north of 
the Plaza at Delray.          
        
Mr. McDonnell entered project file no. 2011-074 into the record. 
 
Review By Others: 
 
The subject property is not located within a geographical area requiring review by the CRA 
(Community Redevelopment Agency) or the DDA (Downtown Development Authority).  

 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
March 21, 2011 

 

 2 

Courtesy Notices: 
 

Courtesy notices have been provided to the following groups and neighborhood 
associations:  
 Neighborhood Advisory Council   Harbourside 
 Delray Citizen’s Coalition   Delray Beach Harbor Club E View 
 Floranda   Domain Delray 
 Banyan Tree Village    Delray Citizen’s Coalition 
 Heritage Club   Linton Woods 

 
Mr. Glickstein advised he struggled with this site plan as he felt it was a bit of a rouse in 
common ownership of both parcels.  The ownership signing the designation but I see two 
seals at the bottom legally suggesting there is a unity of title. Is there is one owner on this 
property?  Mr. McDonnell advised the applicant will explain. 
 
Mr. Glickstein inquired if Parcel C was residential.  As I recall, that was a tract reserved as   
a natural area as Parcel C, an open space.  Mr. McDonnell advised there will be a small 
parking lot with landscaping.  It will not have any residential units on it.  Mr. Glickstein 
inquired in that regard would it be consistent if it was a green space recreational under the 
dedication it is platted for private purposes.  Would that be a possible dedication?  Mr. 
McDonnell advised those spaces are reserved for those single-family residential units.  Mr. 
Weiner will confirm if that is true. 
 
Applicant 
 
Mr. Weiner, Weiner & Lynn, Agent for the owner, advised basically as you can see from 
the staff report there are thirty (30) conditions of approval, and all the conditions will be 
met before the certification of the plat. Floranda MHP, LLC and New Century are affiliated.  
The new ownership will occur.  In regard to Appendix A - and specifically, items A., B., and 
C., there will be site plan revisions for open space or other type of mitigation.  Staff and 
the applicant have been working closely to make sure this happens.  Regarding the 
conditions, discussion concerning the bond in the conditions of approval, I do believe there 
is an abandonment going forward simultaneously with this.  A bond must be provided to 
the City for construction of the new roadway.  Regarding No. 5. abandonment permits, a 
lot of work has been done to make sure there is always access.  
 
Public Comments: 
 
Ms. Aisha Colon, 307 SE 12th Road, pointed out that she was never given notice.  At the 
City Commission meeting they were told to give me notice of these meetings.  I received 
no notice.  I don’t have anything against development.  But it takes away people’s civil 
rights. There are many issues that have not been heard or addressed and it is all about 
money.  There are additions on trailers that are against code.  There are rentals to families 
with no heat or air conditioning.  I am a photographer and I was approached by Dr. Franco 
who has written books about poverty in other countries.  He approached me about doing 
some photographs for the book, and that I would have to go to Haiti or Africa.  I advised I 
don’t have to; you can come to my front yard. This park is full of migrants, Latinos, and 
blacks.  He wrote the book.  I live here, I know many people here.  It will have an impact 
on all the citizens of Delray Beach.   
 



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
March 21, 2011 

 

 3 

Board Comments: 
 
Mr. Glickstein advised common ownership has been a problem.  I hear what Mr. Weiner 
said about the chronology.  This has to have one owner.  There are two signatures, 
Floranda MHP LLC, and I see two signatures at the bottom.  We were granting them 
mixed use development rights when it was not common ownership.  There was no unity of 
title.  This plan should not be recorded until there is one owner of the property. 
 
Mr. Lynch advised the bond should be secured before the abandonment of the existing 
road.   
 
Mr. Weiner advised we cannot put up the bond until we are ready to construct the road.  It 
is the construction process that gets bonded.  I can show you the memo we sent to the 
City Attorney.  
 
Mr. Glickstein advised if they demo this site the access is within this plat. If they don’t bond 
because they are not pulling the permit.  You can get a demo permit.   
 
Mr. Weiner advised there are access easement agreements that have to be recorded.  
That road does not go away until after the other road is built.  There is a bond for that road 
and it goes away if the access is in place.  The City worked on an agreement. 
 
Mr. Miller inquired regarding the people that are living there now is there any City 
ombudsman they can go to.  Mr. McDonnell advised they would work through the City 
Engineering Department regarding the road. 
 
Motion: 
 
Motion made by Mr. Lynch, seconded by Mr. Glickstein, and approved 6 to 0 (Mr. Jacquet 
absent) to move a recommendation of approval to the City Commission of the Preliminary 
Plat and certification of the Final Plat for Franklin at Delray Beach, by adopting the findings 
of fact and law contained in the staff report, and finding that the request is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and meets criteria set forth in Section 2.4.5(J) (Major 
Subdivisions), Section 3.2.3 (Standards for Site Plan and/or Plat Actions) and Section 
3.1.1 (Required Findings for Land Use and Land Development Applications) of the Land 
Development Regulations, subject to the following condition: 

 
1. That all comments under the “Technical Items” section (Appendix “B”) of the report be 

addressed prior to scheduling the plat for City Commission action. 
 
2. No. 5 - Preliminary Engineering Technical Comments: to be revised to read prior to 

building permit of new road to replace the rock/gravel road. 
 
 

V. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  
 

A. Consideration of a City-initiated amendment to the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs), by amending Section 4.6.9 “Off-Street Parking Regulations”, Subsection 
4.6.9(E)(3) “In-Lieu Fee” as it pertains to the Pineapple Grove Main Street (Expanded) 
Neighborhood Area.   

 



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
March 21, 2011 

 

 4 

Mr. McDonnell entered the project file into the record. 
 
Review By Others 
 
The Downtown Development Authority reviewed the proposed LDR amendment at its 
meeting of March 14, 2011 and unanimously recommended approval. 
 
The Community Redevelopment Agency reviewed the proposed LDR amendment at its 
meeting of March 10, 2011 and recommended approval of the proposed text change. 
 
The Parking Management Advisory will review the proposed LDR amendment at its 
meeting of March 22, 2011. Recommendations of the Board will be forwarded directly to 
the City Commission. 
 
Courtesy notices were provided to the following civic associations: 
 Neighborhood Advisory Council 
 Delray Citizen’s Coalition 
 Chamber of Commerce 

 

Mr. Miller inquired what is the area that is not included in it now.  Mr. McDonnell advised 
we are changing area 3; it is moving into area 2 and the fee would be revised down to 
$7,800.00 and consistent with all of Pineapple Grove Main Street. 
 
Motion: 
 
Motion made by Mr. Glickstein, seconded by Mr. Lynch, and approved 6 to 0 (Mr. Jacquet 
absent) to recommend approval of the amendment to Land Development Regulations, 
Section 4.6.9(E)(3), In-Lieu Fee, by adopting the findings of fact and law contained in the 
staff report, and finding that the text amendment and approval thereof is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and meets the criteria set forth in LDR Section 2.4.5(M). 
 

B. Consideration of a City-initiated amendment to the Land Development Regulations (LDRs) 
by amending Section 7.9.11 “Boatlifts” to clarify setback requirements.     

 
Mr. McDonnell entered the project file into the record. 

 

Courtesy Notices  
 

Courtesy notices were provided to the following homeowner and civic associations: 
 Neighborhood Advisory Council 
 Progressive Residents of Delray (PROD) 
 

Mr. Miller advised his only concern is not if you have a large lot, but if you have a small lot 
30 feet wide town house lot.  That allows you to have a 10 boat.  What would happen, 
would they angle the boat out to the canal which could be an impediment. Can you put a 
boatlift in and put a 25 foot to 40 foot boat considering the size of the lift.  If someone had 
a smaller lot could they with neighbor’s approval get a waiver - what is the option here. Mr. 
McDonnell advised the neighbor’s approval would not be an option, but it would be a 
violation of the code.  There would have to be some relief through City Commission or the 
Site Plan Review and Appearance Board.  This only pertains to lifts. 
 



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
March 21, 2011 

 

 5 

Mr. Lynch inquired how this came to the City.  Mr. McDonnell advised it was identified 
internally by Mr. Phil Etchison in the Building Department.  We have been using common 
sense in our interpretation.  We had a staff person that was uncomfortable with the way it 
was worded.  This will basically support the interpretation that is made.  Mr. Miller advised 
he does not know how this could be enforced.  We have been regulating it as the way this 
is proposed.  There has not been an issue.  Mr. McDonnell replied that the desire is to 
make it consistent with how it has been applied.  
 
Ms. Pyburn advised this is a housecleaning ordinance.  The boat lift will not exceed 20 
feet from the property line or the sea wall.  There is no change to that section. 
 
Mr. Miller advised the lifted boat is much more stable than a moored boat. 
 
Mr. Lynch advised your concern would be against this regardless of the change.   
 
Mr. Miller advised it would impact someone’s ability to use their property. 
 
Mr. Durden inquired what was the purpose.  Mr. McDonnell advised it is to give you that 
protection so you are not sandwiched in to each other as well as for maneuverability. 
 
Mr. Lynch inquired if jet skis fell into this criteria.  Ms. Pyburn advised one boat lift is 
permitted. 
 
Motion: 
 
Motion made by Mr. Lynch, seconded by Mr. Durden and approved 5 to 1 (Mr. Jacquet 
absent, and Mr. Miller dissented) to recommend approval of the amendment to Land 
Development Regulations, Article 7.9, “Docks, Dolphins, Finger Piers, And Boat Lifts”, By 
Amending Section 7.9.11, “Standards For Approval”; To Clarify Current Language 
Regarding Boat Lifts, by adopting the findings of fact and law contained in the staff report, 
and finding that the text amendment and approval thereof is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and meets the criteria set forth in LDR Section 2.4.5(M). 

 
 VI. PLANNING AND IMPLEMENTATION ITEMS  
 

A. Review of the public comments and responses recorded at the 2011 Annual Citizen’s 
Roundtable meeting.        ___    

 
Mr. McDonnell advised that staff would recommend that you acknowledge potential inclusion 
of comments in the upcoming Capital Improvement Plan. 

 
Mr. Miller advised more inlets are needed on Atlantic Avenue.   Mr. McDonnell advised they 
wanted to see more opportunities for positive drainage, and sidewalk specific comments were 
also made. 
 
Mr. McDonnell advised some comments were made about the nude beach, and that would not 
be a capital improvement. 
 
Mr. Lynch advised that we need additional bike lanes downtown.  Mr. McDonnell advised in 
order to accomplish this you would have to get rid of one lane of parking. 



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
March 21, 2011 

 

 6 

 
Mr. McDonnell advised there were several references to the area on NE 2nd Avenue, north of 
NE 4th Street that deserve lighting and need attention.  That is a big thoroughfare according 
to one of the public comments.  The sidewalk is cracked up on 2nd Avenue.  It is also very 
dark, and there are inconsistencies on the west side of NE 2nd Avenue.  Mr. McDonnell 
advised that Ms. Alvarez, our Historic Preservation Planner, is working with the Del-Ida area 
to make improvements to that area. 
 
Dr. Spodak advised that it does not make sense that we have such a robust Pineapple Grove 
and there is no lighting.  Mr. Lynch advised lighting from Atlantic Avenue to the Sundy House 
is also very dark.   
 
Mr. Durden advised lighting is also needed on the south side of Lake Ida Road and Congress 
Avenue to Military Trail. 
 
Dr. Spodak advised a new entrance to the garage should be established.  There are 
removable pylons and the thoroughfare goes from east to west in that area.  The garage is 
underutilized. 
 
Mr. Lynch advised the garage should have been on 1st or 2nd.  You need a sign that shows 
the location of the garage. There are no parking symbols. Mr. McDonnell advised from 
discussions at the Parking Committee meetings to having more universal parking signage 
where the garage is.  I spoke with Mr. Dorling, the sign is there and they get disoriented when 
they go down the stairs and where they are coming out from.  Mr. Dorling is familiar with the 
garage and how it functions.   Mr. Lynch advised you have to think of someone who is not 
familiar with the area. Mr. Glickstein inquired why are people considering how to get into the 
garage.  Dr. Spodak advised most of the citizens don’t know how to parallel park. 
 
These issues will be presented to the City Engineering Department, and they will look at all of 
these items as capital improvements.  They will decide what is necessary and then it will be 
put into the program. 
 
Mr. Durden and Mr. Lynch wanted to know when the Board would be apprised of the findings.  
Mr. McDonnell advised he will check and provide a follow-up.  Inclusion of items in the CIP will 
become known as that action item is prepared. 

 
Motion: 

 

Motion made by Mr. Lynch, seconded by Mr. Krall, and approved 6 to 0 to accept the public 
infrastructure recommendations and recommend their inclusion in the upcoming Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP). 

 
VII.  REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

 
A. Board Members 

  Parking Management Advisory Board (PMAB) - Mr. Krall advised the next meeting will be 
held on March 22, 2011. 

 
B. Staff 

 
Meeting Dates for April 



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
March 21, 2011 

 

 7 

 
City Commission Meetings 

 
Tuesday, April 5, 2011, City Commission Regular Meeting, 6:00 p.m., City Commission 
Chambers 

 
Tuesday, April 19, 2011, City Commission Regular Meeting, 6:00 p.m., City Commission 
Chambers 

 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
 
Monday, April 25, 2011, Planning and Zoning Board Regular Meeting, 6:00 p.m., City 
Commission Chambers:          

 
1. Conditional use request associated with the establishment of a fraternal club for the 

Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 4141, located on the west side of SE 5th Avenue, south of 
SE 8th Street (802 SE 5th Avenue). 

 
2. Final Subdivision plat request associated with the replat of two lots to create 4 single 

family fee simple lots for Seaside, located on the north side of Lowry Street, east of 
Seabreeze Avenue.  

 
C. Board Members - no comments 

 
VII.   ADJOURN 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 
The undersigned is the Secretary of the Planning and Zoning Board and the information provided 
herein is the Minutes of the meeting of said body for March 21, 2011 which was formally adopted 
and approved by the Board on April 25, 2011.  

 

Denise A. Valek    

Denise A. Valek, Executive Assistant 
 
 
 

If the Minutes that you have received are not completed as indicated above, then this means that these are not the 
official Minutes. They will become so after review and approval, which may involve some changes. 

 
 

 
 
 
 


